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Addendum #01 – David L. Lawrence Convention Center 

   Design Build Curtain Wall Accordion Gasket Replacement 
 
October 1, 2025 
 
Prospective firms shall attach this addendum to the Request For Proposal documents now in their 
possession. 
 
1) Dates: 

a) Deadline for Submission of Proposals:  4:00pm | Thursday, October 9, 2025 
i) Location: SEA Administration Office 

171 10th Street, 2nd Floor, Pittsburgh, PA 15222 
 

2) Additional Information: 
a) Contact information 

i) Non-Mandatory Pre-Proposal Meeting Summary 
(1) PM reviewed Meeting Agenda (See Pre-Proposal Meeting Minutes attached). 
(2) Facility site walk conducted to review Scope of Work and detail. 

  
b) Please find attached a copy of the Insurance Requirement Worksheet 

 
c) Please find attached a copy of the Prevailing Wage Determination 

 
d) Please find attached a copy of the Project Labor Stabilization Agreement 

 
3) Questions: 

a) Question: Does a Movement/tolerance Report exist? If so, can it be provided? If not, we  
would propose having the movement studied -would you prefer this be part of 
base service or additional service?  

Response: To the best of our knowledge a report does not exist.  This is a design build project 
therefore if the proposing team feels it is necessary it should be part of their 
proposal. 

 
b) Question: We believe there are annual inspection reports of the Curtainwalls, can those be  

shared?  
Response: Yes.  

 
c) Question: Will DLCC be providing lifts/scaffolding to review the exterior and interior? If  

not, can the lift/scaffolding detail requirements be shared? 
Response: This is a design build project therefore if the proposing team feels access is  

necessary to review a condition those costs including access should be part of 
their proposal.  The DLCC does not have a lift/scaffold detail requirement this 
would be up to the proposing team to determine. 
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d) Question: Does DLCC have additional details of what was originally installed other than  

those shared already? 
Response: No 

 
e) Question: Have any repairs been done on the joints? If so, what isn’t working? 

Response: To the best of our knowledge no repairs have been done on the joints. 
 
f) Question: While not specifically indicated, are the large movement bellows to be part of  

this scope?  These are the vertical bellows below the roof. 
Response: No.   

 
g) Question: What Warranty is DLCC looking for? Typically, there would be a 1-5 year  

workmanship warranty along with a 5–10-year warranty for materials provided 
by the manufacturer.  Are these acceptable ranges? 

Response: Please refer to Exhibit A of the Request For Proposal. 
 

h) Question: Will a bid bond be required? 
Response: No, the Request For Proposal does not require a bid bond. 

 
i) Question: Will payment and performance bonds be required? 

Response: Yes, upon execution of the Agreement Between Owner and Contractor payment  
and performance bonds will be required. 

 
j) Question: Will the Insurance Requirements be provided? 

Response: Insurance requirements are provided in this addendum 
 
k) Question: What are the capacities of the Service Elevator and Freight Elevator? 

Response: The Freight Elevator has a capacity of 12,000 lbs and the Service Elevator has a 
capacity of 8,000 lbs. 

 
l) Question: Who will be responsible for obtaining permits, if required, and associated costs  

for the permits since the costs will not be known at the time of submission of the 
proposal? 

Response: As indicated in Exhibit A, the scope of work indicates the proposer will be  
responsible for permits, if required. If the permit fees associated with any 
required permits are not known at the time the proposals are due, then this 
should be noted in the proposal. 

 
m) Question: Is the design build firm to provide a schedule? 

Response: Yes, as part of the Technical Proposal a bar diagram schedule indicating the 
project duration of the major construction tasks and subtasks identified in the 
scope of work should be submitted. As mentioned in Exhibit A, the Authority will 
then work with the successful firm to review and coordinate the erection 
procedure and scheduling. This coordination will include minimizing conflicts and 
interruptions with events within the building. 
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n) Question: Is watertightness during construction and the replacement a requirement? 
Response: Yes. 

 
4) Attachments: 

a) Pre-Proposal Meeting Minutes 
b) Pre-Proposal Sign-In Sheet 
c) Insurance Requirement Worksheet 
d) Prevailing Wage Determination 
e) Project Labor Stabilization Agreement 

 



Pre-Proposal Meeting Minutes 
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SPORTS & EXHIBITION AUTHORITY OF PITTSBURGH AND ALLEGHENY COUNTY 

PITTSBURGH, PENNSYLVANIA 

 

Pre-Proposal Meeting, September 25, 2025 

 

DAVID L. LAWRENCE CONVENTION CENTER 

DESIGN BUILD CURTAIN WALL ACCORDION GASKET REPLACEMENT 
 

Meeting Minutes 

 

1. An attendance sheet was distributed to all those present. 

2. Tom Ryser (TPR) welcomed everyone for their interest in the project and for attending the meeting. 

3. TPR provided a general overview of the proposed project. 

4. TPR discussed the general purpose of the Pre-Proposal meeting which was to identify the roles of the 

various organizations, discuss specifics of the project, to review what was expected in the proposals, 

and answer any questions. 

5. Project Role 

Doug Straley is the Authority’s Project Executive and will be overseeing the project. 

Tom Ryser is an owner’s representative for the Authority and will be the project manager. 

Ryan Buries is ASM’s Assistant General Manager of the David L. Lawrence Convention Center; 

ASM will assist in the coordination with the building operations to make sure the project conforms 

to the operations of the active building. 

6. TPR reviewed the Request for Proposal by going through each section highlighting some critical 

points: 

-Reviewed scope of work as outlined in RFP. 

-Reviewed project deliverables as outlined in RFP. 

-Authority’s MBE/WBE Participation is 25% minority participation and 10% women’s 

participation.  MBE/WBE Participation and Workforce Diversity forms must be completed and 

submitted w/ the proposals as described in the RFP. 

7. Dates 

All questions must be received by Tuesday, September 30, 2025by 4:00 PM. 

Hard and electronic copies of the proposals are due Thursday, October 9, 2025 by 4:00 PM 

8. Pre-proposal meeting minutes will be issued via an addendum.  Any question after this meeting will 

need to be submitted in writing to Tom Ryser.  The questions and responses will be provided to all 

firms via an addendum.   

9. Questions/Discussion 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

These meeting minutes have been prepared by TPR and are TPR’s interpretation of the discussions 

which took place.  All participants are requested to review these minutes and advise of any corrections 

or additions required. 

 





Insurance Requirement Worksheet 
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Insurance Requirement Worksheet 

 

Contractor shall procure and maintain, at its’ own expenses, during the life of this 

Agreement, all of the insurances listed below. All policies shall be written on an 

occurrence basis and shall be written with an Insurer that is licensed to do business in 

Pennsylvania and is acceptable to the Owner and have an A.M. Best Rating of A+ or A.  

 

A. Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance 

 

Contractor shall take out and maintain during the life of this Project such insurance as 

shall protect the Owner from all claims for damages for physical injury, including 

wrongful death, as well as from claims for property damages, other than the Work itself, 

which may arise from operations on the Project, and to this end the following insurance 

coverages are required: 

 

The amounts of each insurance shall be as follows: 

 

Public Liability Insurance in an amount not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) 

for injuries and/or wrongful death or property damage any one occurrence and, Two 

Million Dollars ($2,000,000) General Policy Aggregate, which will apply on a per project 

basis.  Coverage shall include but not be limited to, Premises, Operations, 

Product/Completed Operations, Blanket Contractual, Personal Injury, explosion, Collapse 

and Underground.       

 

B. Automobile Insurance 

 

Automobile Insurance in an amount not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for 

injuries and/or wrongful death or property damage due to any one accident.  Policy shall 

include coverage for all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles.  The policy shall bear the 

full and exact name of the Trade Contractor as insured. 

 

C. Worker’s Compensation 

 

1.  The Contractor shall accept the provisions of the Worker’s Compensation Act 

of 1915, and any supplements or amendments thereof, including any which may 

hereafter be passed, and shall insure his full liability thereunder for all parts of 

this Contract being performed by him, his partners, associates, or file with the 

Owner a certificate of exemption from insurance from the Bureau of Workmen’s 

Compensation of the Department of Labor and Industry. 

 

2.      The Contractor shall carry such insurance for all their employees engaged 

on the Project and agree that the Trade Contractor shall not be permitted to 

perform Work on the project without Worker’s Compensation insurance 

coverage. 
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D.           Umbrella Liability 

 

Contractor shall purchase and maintain for the full term of this Project Umbrella Liability 

with limits in an amount not less than Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) each occurrence 

combined single limit.  The policy shall be excess over the Trade Contractor’s Public 

Liability, Automobile Liability and Employers’ Liability.  The policy shall bear the full 

and exact name of the Trade Contractor as the insured with the Owner as additional 

insured. 

 

E. Builder’s Risk/ Installation Floater 

 

For contracts equal to and exceeding the amount of Two Hundred Fifty Thousand 

Dollars ($250,000), during the term of the Contract, Contractor shall maintain in force 

builder’s Risk/Installation Floater in the full amount of the Contract covering labor, 

materials and equipment used or to be used for completion of the work performed under 

the Contract, against all risks of direct physical loss. 

 

F. Professional Liability 

 

Contractor shall purchase and maintain for the full term of this Agreement, Professional 

Liability with limits in an amount not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) each 

occurrence combined single limit.  Such insurance shall be maintained in force by the 

Contractor for three (3) years after the date of substantial completion of the Work. 

 

G. Additional Insureds 

 

For any of the above insurance policies for which the Owner is the Certificate Holder, 

such insurance policies shall also name the following as additional insureds:  the 

 

Sports & Exhibition Authority of Pittsburgh and Allegheny County 

The City of Pittsburgh  

Allegheny County 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 

SMG 

 

G.           Additional Requirements 

 

All liability insurance shall be on an occurrence basis rather than claims made policy.  All 

liability insurance shall be primary and non-contributory.  Contractor waives all rights 

against Owner for damages caused by any peril covered by insurance provide under these 

Insurance Requirements.  All insurance policies required hereunder shall permit and 

recognize such waivers of subrogation. An Actual Notice of Cancellation endorsement 

will be delivered that will provide that coverage cannot be canceled except upon not less 

than thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Authority.     



Prevailing Wage Determination 

  













Project Labor Stabilization Agreement 






























































